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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six months period ended 30 June 2021.

The global economy took a big hit from the COVID-19 pandemic (the
“Pandemic”) in 2020. Although there is sight for recovery in 2021,
the business sentiment was swayed by concerns over the worldwide
economic outlook amid the Pandemic and the development of China-
US relations. This sentiment had weakened the demand for some of
the Group’s products and services from the private sectors. Conversely,
the orders from the governments and semi-government organisations
remained steady during the reporting period. Accordingly, the Group’s
overall revenue rose by HK$7.9 million, or 6.7% to HK$125.3 million (2020:
HK$117.4 million).

As reported last year, the Group’s Solutions Services business had
adjourned the capitalisation of the development costs for software
enhancement project of the Customer Care and Billing System (the
“CCBS”) and charged HK$4.2 million (2020: capitalised HK$4.3 million) to
the profit or loss statement. As a result, the growth rate of cost of sales
and services was larger than the revenue growth in the first half of 2021.
The gross profit margin was dropped to 53.1% (2020: 56.1%) while the
gross profit improved mildly by 1.1% to HK$66.5 million (2020: HK$65.8
million).

The total non-operating incomes rose by HK$2.0 million, or 135.6%
to HK$3.4 million (2020: HK$1.4 million). The increment was primarily
attributed to the gains in valuation of the investment properties and
stocks and partially offset by the absence of government subsidy
related to the Pandemic and the fall in bank interest income. The overall
expenses were generally maintained at the same level compared with
same period last year. The income tax expense soared as an effect of the
increase in assessable profits generated in Hong Kong.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders improved by 7.8% to HK$21.4 million (2020:
HK$19.9 million). The basic earnings per share also increased to 8.64 HK
cents (2020: 8.03 HK cents).

In view of a sustained healthy financial position, the Board declared the
distribution of an interim dividend of 6 HK cents (2020: 5 HK cents) per
ordinary share for the six months ended 30 June 2021.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

The Group’s Application Softwarel™ business recorded a mild growth in
revenue and maintained its profit contributions to the Group.

The performance of the Group’s Human Resources Management Software
(“HRMS”) business was steady during the reporting period. The gradual
recovery of some industry sectors released the accumulated demands for
those add-on modules and services from the Group’s installed customer
base. However, the Pandemic continued to put pressure and uncertainty
to the economy causing corporations to defer their new investment
decisions or to reduce their new project size. Despite this setback, the
HRMS business managed to conclude new orders from various sectors
including leading biopharmaceutical companies, a specialist in sanitation
industry and a digital asset management with Financial Technology
(“Fintech”) company. The business is actively developing new customers
with Software as a Service (“SaaS”) revenue which may compete
with its on-premise software licence income steam. In long term, the
development of SaaS business model, which meant to generate more
sustainable recurring incomes, could compliment to its strong recurrent
maintenance revenue from the existing customers.

The Group’s enterprise software business continued its growth
momentum during the reporting period. Both Enterprise Information
Management Software (“EIMS”) business and Enterprise Procurement
Management Software (“EPMS”) business achieved healthy growths
in revenue and double-digit increment in their profit contributions.
However, these strong results were partially offset by the sluggish retail
market that the Group’s Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”)
business was facing.

The strong customer base continued to provide the Group’s EIMS business
with stable recurring maintenance income and new opportunities. The
business continued to acquire new clients from the healthcare industry
and the financial service sector. The upgraded modules of VITOVA
workflow and e-Form also generated promising market demands.

The Group’s EPMS flagship product, ProSmart, remained a proven and
competitive solution to enterprises in uplifting the procurement practices
and the compliance procedures conforming the corporate governance
standard. During the reporting period, the business was managed to
sign up one of the largest non-profit organisations in Hong Kong. The
strong and expanding installation base of ProSmart not only provided
the business strong recurring SaaS and maintenance incomes, but also
established a strong reference to attract new prospects.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Application Software (continued)

As mentioned, the Group’s ERMS business faced difficult operating
environment as the retail industry outside of China was not recovering
well from the Pandemic. Despite the business reported a lower profit
contribution to the Group, it was expected that the performance would
be improved in the second half of the year as some clients would resume
their on-hold projects.

With years of experiences in developing a strong foundation framework
to linkup various software products, the evolution had been realised
during the reporting period. The form builder module and workflow
engine were integrated smoothly in the software products’ architecture
and generated a new form of business through self-sustainable
automation. Benefit from the investment in CISC Limited (“CISC") in 2020,
the Group also started a series of research related to big data and artificial
intelligence (“Al”) that would enrich the software business offerings in the
future.

Apart from our investment in research and development (“R&D"), the
Group is actively expanding the technical resources and exploring
business expansion in the Greater Bay Area. Additional management
and support resources were recruited to promote the Group’s software
business in such area.

Solutions and Integration Services

The revenue of the Group’s Solutions and Integration Services®? business
improved by HK$1.4 million, or 3.2% to HK$45.2 million (2020: HK$43.8
million). On the contrary, the profit contribution dropped by HK$3.7
million, or 34.6% to HK$6.9 million (2020: HK$10.6 million) as the
Solutions Services business had stopped the capitalisation and directly
absorbed the development costs for the CCBS'’s software enhancements
project of HK$4.2 million (2020: capitalised HK$4.3 million) in the current
period’s profit or loss statement. The performance of the business would
be improved by 4.7% if the development costs were booked as per
previous practice.

Benefiting from the variation orders awarded last year, the Managed
Services®? under the Group’s Solutions Services business generated more
revenue from the CCBS of the Water Supplies Department under the
HKSAR Government (the “Government”). Besides, the implementation
schedule of the CCBS's software enhancements project was on track with
completion target in 2022.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services (continued)

The performance of Development Services®? under the Group’s Solutions
Services business was stable during the reporting period. Various
Government departments, a public transportation body and a power
utility conglomerate had awarded new orders to the Group continuously.

The Group's Integration Services® business in the PRC was improved in
the first two quarters of 2021 and contributed to increase in both revenue
and profit contribution.

e-Service and related business

The Group’s GETSE! business was benefitted from recovery of the global
trading environment and recorded growth in revenue during the
reporting period. Apart from the revenue growth, the performance was
further improved by the effective control of various operating costs of the
business.

Investments

The Group'’s Investments segment experienced a turnaround and
recorded profit of HK$2.5 million (2020: loss of HK$4.5 million) during the
reporting period. The difference was made through the increased rental
income and valuation gains from investment properties and financial
assets because of the strengthened financial markets.

PROSPECT

The prospects of the Group in the rest of the year will be hinged critically
on how fast the Pandemic can be fully contained. Looking forward, the
Pandemic will have continuous impact in different business segments
and the life of every individual. The Group will stay alert to the Pandemic
and impose necessary measures to minimise any negative impact to
our business and our people. Focusing on the product R&D, exploring
business acquisition opportunities and expanding the Group’s businesses
in the Greater Bay Area in post Pandemic period will be the key
management directions in the foreseeable future.

Footnotes:

m The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
enterprise applications software and e-business services for enterprises
including (i) the provision of enterprise applications software with
implementation and ongoing support services for Human Resource
Management, Enterprise Procurement Management, Enterprise Information
Management and Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the
“Application Software”); and (ii) the Government Electronic Trading Services
(“GETS"), cloud services and other related value-added services (collectively
the “e-Service and related business”).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

Footnotes: (continued)

@ The Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business mainly includes
(i) Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation
and application software development; (ii) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services;
and (iii) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and ongoing support
services.

Bl Since 2004, the Group has been granted a licence (the “GETS Licence”)
from the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group's GETS Licence was further renewed in early 2018 for operation of
additional six years until the end of 2024.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

The Group’s revenue increased by HK$7.9 million, or 6.7% to HK$125.3
million (2020: HK$117.4 million). The increment was attributed to the
improved performances from all business segments during the reporting
period.

However, the cost of sales and services rose by HK$7.1 million, or 13.8%
to HK$58.7 million (2020: HK$51.6 million). The increase was primarily
due to the fact that the Group’s Solutions Services business had stopped
capitalising the development costs for the CCBS software enhancement
project and charged HK$4.2 million (2020: capitalised HK$4.3 million)
to the profit or loss statement. The cost of the Group’s Application
Software also went up following the increase in its R&D spending and
the acquisition of CISC in July 2020. As a result, the gross profit slightly
improved by HK$0.7 million, or 1.1% to HK$66.5 million (2020: HK$65.8
million) while the gross profit margin was dropped to 53.1% (2020:
56.1%).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains/
(losses), net)

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other income and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains/(losses), net)
increased by HK$2.0 million, or 135.6% to HK$3.4 million (2020: HK$1.4
million). The strengthened Hong Kong stock and property markets in the
first half of this year contributed valuation gains of HK$1.2 million (2020:
loss of HK$4.1 million) to the Group, whereas the interest rate cut and the
absence of government subsidies under Employment Support Scheme
reduced the non-operating incomes by HK$0.9 million and HK$2.4
million, respectively.

Expenses

Overall expenses were generally in line with the last period. The income
tax expense soared as an effect of the increase in assessable profits
generated in Hong Kong.

Non-current assets

Owing to the amortisation of other intangible assets and the depreciation
of property, plant and equipment, the Group’s non-current assets as at
30 June 2021 slightly decreased by HK$4.9 million, or 1.8% to HK$269.3
million (31 December 2020: HK$274.3 million).

Current assets

The Group's current assets as at 30 June 2021 decreased by 2.5% to
HK$383.2 million (31 December 2020: HK$393.0 million). The change was
mainly attributed to the net effect of (i) the increase in trade receivables
and contract assets as there were increased number of progress
developments billed and pending to bill by end of June 2021; (ii) the
decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables in view of less
prepayment made to the suppliers; and (iii) the decrease in cash and bank
balances after the despatch of 2020 final dividend in June 2021.

The Group maintains strict controls over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) were all
recoverable in the foreseeable future.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current liabilities and non-current liabilities

The Group’s current and non-current liabilities dropped by HK$6.9 million,
or 4.6% to HK$144.8 million (31 December 2020: HK$151.7 million).
The change was the net effect of the decrease in trade payables, bonus
provision and lease liabilities and the increase in deferred maintenance
services revenue under contract liabilities.

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets and segment liabilities of Applications Services business
dropped in line with the decrease in other intangible assets, trade
receivables, trade payables, accruals and contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services business increased
owing to the increase in trade receivables while the segment liabilities of
the business increased due to the increase in contract liabilities.

Segment assets of Investments business increased as there were
valuation gains for both investment properties and financial assets.

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent as at 30 June 2021
slightly dropped by HK$7.6 million, or 1.5% to HK$505.6 million (31
December 2020: HK$513.2 million). The change was mainly the net
results of the profit earned in first half of 2021, the purchase of shares
held under the restricted share award scheme and the payment of 2020
final dividend.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$63.5 million (31 December 2020: HK$63.0 million), listed
debt and equity securities of HK$8.1 million (31 December 2020: HK$7.3
million) and bank balances of HK$0.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$0.7
million) to secure certain general bank facilities including guarantee/
performance bonds facilities granted to the Group/subsidiaries of the
Company in aggregate of HK$112.1 million (31 December 2020: HK$112.0
million) of which HK$21.6 million (31 December 2020: HK$21.6 million)
have been utilised as at 30 June 2021.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$283.2
million (31 December 2020: HK$295.6 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2020: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 3.0 (31 December 2020: 2.9) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 22.2% (31
December 2020: 22.7%).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
FEHRE(E)

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
(CONTINUED)

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2021 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2020 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2021, the Group employed 354 full time employees
and 8 part time employees (31 December 2020: 373 full time employees
and 6 part time employees).

As at 30 June 2021, the Company operates a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations
as well as to retain them for the continual development of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group had no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2021.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries during the period and up to the date of this report.
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as at
30 June 2021.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2021.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board declared the payment of an interim dividend of HK$0.06 (2020:
an interim dividend of HK$0.05) per ordinary share for the six months
ended 30 June 2021.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
1 September 2021 to Thursday, 2 September 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the interim dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 31 August 2021. The
dividend will be distributed on or about Wednesday, 15 September 2021
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Thursday, 2 September 2021.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By Order of the Board

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited
Ng Cheung Shing

Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 August 2021
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRGaIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the unaudited
condensed consolidated interim results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June
2021, together with the comparative figures. These unaudited condensed
consolidated interim results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit
committee.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT
ORLOSS

HMEMEASERARAR (ARANESES
([ZFgDBRENARARERBAT (5
HIAEE)HE-_TE-_—F<A=+H1
NERZREEZEREE P HEEER
LEBEHT - WERKEZEREE P HES
EEBAARIEZEZESERN -

ERFEEER

For the six months ended 30 June

BERNA=tTHLAEA

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_EF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
Notes HKs’000 HKS'000
k=3 FET FET
REVENUE LON 5 125,270 117,408
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS R AR (58,723) (51,591)
Gross profit EF 66,547 65,817
Other income and gains, net E M A R a5 5 2,406 5,662
Foreign exchange differences, net E 5 Z R (259) (104)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: ANEEWNE (BE)F5E -
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEERAKRZ
profit or loss B EE 741 (2,695)
Investment properties HEMEE 500 (1,425)
Selling and distribution expenses SHE My AT (16,508) (16,592)
General and administrative expenses, net —#& & 17 51 32 )% 58 (27,776) (27,922)
Finance costs b e =45 7 (612) (378)
Other expenses Him (3,246) (3,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A E R 6 21,793 19,352
Income tax credit/(expense) FTisfiE e, (FAxX) 8 (530) 498
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 7 1 7 2 A 21,263 19,850
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BTN AL :
Owners of the parent [SYNEIEZZPN 21,390 19,850
Non-controlling interests IR (127) -
21,263 19,850
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B AREBERBREMN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF FREF HK cents HK cents
THE PARENT 10 Bl BN
Basic BN 8.64 8.03
Diluted e 8.60 7.99
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
AmE 2 E R EE

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHILEAEA

2021 2020
—B-—F ke gk 2
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (REgsEz)
HKs’000 HKSs000
FETT FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD AEEEF 21,263 19,850
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hig ZE KA
Other comprehensive income that maybe A {E1& #5f - H b2 AU A AT &8
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EoEEEREK
periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEBRREE
foreign operations E W =5 776 56
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHE 7~ 2 H W A # 58
PERIOD 22,039 19,906
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BT AL :
Owners of the parent NAEEE A 22,166 19,906
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI MR (127) -
22,039 19,906
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B S MBI R

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —ETETF
ANA=+H +ZA=+—8
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (&&= =Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Bt FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 11 1,418 1,987
Investment properties A 12 66,790 66,290
Right-of-use assets HRREEE 13(a) 3,392 4,983
Goodwill Bl 14 135,001 135,001
Other intangible assets HivmL&E 15 57,710 60,956
Financial assets at fair value through BAFELER AR BTG
profit or loss — debt investment BE-—ABKRE 18 2,100 2,100
Deposits g 537 628
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE B 21 2,400 2,320
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 269,348 274,265
CURRENT ASSETS FBEE
Inventories FE 23 7
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 16 50,874 44,498
Contract assets EREE 17 21,100 20,248
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIA - ke REMmEY
receivables MR 15,146 19,414
Tax recoverable AR B IE 3,813 5,155
Financial assets at fair value through BAFAEKLER AR B
profit or loss - listed equity investments & ZE— EW A E R HT
and derivative financial instruments AT A 18 8,124 7,383
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIF R 924 666
Cash and cash equivalents HRekEFRBEEE 283,241 295,632
Total current assets mENEEMAE 383,245 393,003
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, other payables and FERE SRR - EfbER
accruals SKIB M FEET 5B 19 57,413 66,581
Contract liabilities BREE 20 64,440 58,708
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(b) 2,523 4614
Tax payable FESFRIE 4,923 3,973
Total current liabilities mEAEAE 129,299 133,876
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 253,946 259,127
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERADEE
LIABILITIES 523,294 533,392
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

RS B R ()

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-=F
ANAB=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EE=Z)
Notes HK$’000 HKSs'000
k=3 FET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBERE
Other payables H fth fE A 5/ I8 19 498 537
Contract liabilities AHEaE 20 1,098 2,309
Lease liabilities HEBE 13(b) 1,739 2,424
Deferred tax liabilities RETRIREE 21 12,146 12,563
Total non-current liabilities ERBAaGEAE 15,481 17,833
Net assets BERE 507,813 515,559
EQUITY g
Equity attributable to owners of the BAREEABGER
parent
Issued capital BEITRA 24,949 24,949
Share premium account % 1 % & IR 53,104 53,104
Shares held under the restricted share 1R 15 5 BR Bl A% 10 42 Eh 5T &)
award scheme [ex=prdi a0 (3,838) (4,480)
Other reserves E b 431,386 409,945
Proposed final dividend BORRAR R B - 29,702
505,601 513,220
Non-controlling interests FEPESI M 2,212 2,339
Total equity BiEm 507,813 515,559
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BRGeEEEBR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEARE
Other reserves
Efoik
Shares held
underthe Share-
Share restricted based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium  share award payment Gooduwill Reserve  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve Teserve funds resne profits dividend Total interests equity
it
AR
TrirseR
k<61 Rty #EER RBRR BE ER  EXRB RE  HERH FiEHE s
A& AER il B ] 53 i A ks 25 a g
500 5000 5000 5000 HES000 kS 000 HS000 Hs000 5000 5000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET AT AT 7T 7T 7ET 7ET FET FET FET
At January 2020 audited) RIZ-RE-A-B(EER)  uw 53,104 (5462) 5386 22 746 B9 39334 19760 481379 K]
Proftfor the period THEER - - - - - - - 19850 - 19850 - 19850
Other comprehensive income forthe period: A EE B2 AN A -
Exchange differences on translation of 185
foreign operations : - - - - - - 56 - - 56 - 56
Total comprehensive income forthe period 4578 2EH A 48 - - - - - - 56 19850 - 19906 - 19906
Purchase o sharesheld under therrestricted & E £ 13 2B HET
share award scheme i - - (239) - - - - - - (239 - (233)
Vesting of shares held underthe estricted BRI A 2E EE T
share award scheme h% - - 1154 (1,154) - - - - - - - -
Share award arangements R ERZS - - - 7 - - - - - ) - 7
Final 2019 dividend declred ERCE-NERERE - - - - - - - ) (19760) (19789) - (19789)
At30June 2020 (unaudited)
(73R 4949 53,104 (458) 4984 (1221) 746 B13%) 41313 - 48013 - 482013
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

BR(E)

Attributable to owners of the parent

SRR ERE

A A

BRIREARR
Other reserves
AERE
Shares held
under the Share-
Share  restricted based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued  premium  shareaward  payment  Goodwil Reserve  fluctuation  Retained final controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
it
L)
kHZR
B% B HER RBAR [ i EXERD RE  REAH E3:0)c3 #3
fik% EEE Rt 1] i B¢ i B k& 3] Bi 1]
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKs'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FEL FEL FEL FET FET FET
At January 2021 (audited) REBZ-E-A-REER) w9 104 (440 5673 (.227) 46 (83) 436 w0 513 239 515559
Profitfor the period AEEER - - - - - - - 21,390 - 21,390 (127) 21,263
Other comprehensive income forthe period: XS BE B2 AU A :
Exchange differences ontranslationof ~ BEEHEEBELZ
foreign operations ELEE - - 176 776 - 776
Total comprehensive incomefor the period %% 2HHALE - - 176 2139 2,166 (127) 2,039
Purchase of shares held under the restricted & EARHR A2 M3 HET
share award scheme it - (4n) (47) - (4n)
Vesting of shares held under the restricted ERHIRAZBHHET
share award scheme RHER - 1113 (1,113 - - -
Share award arrangements RbkRzS - - 30 - - 30 - 30
Final 2020 dividend declred ER-R-EREKE - - @) 702 (974 - e
At30June 2021 (unaudited) R-E=-FRAZTR
(%E88) 24,949 53,104 (3838) 4990 (1.221) 746 193 432684 505,601 2 s07813
A ‘& i
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRGeRERER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=TRHLEAMEA

2021 2020
—EB-—-F ZT-EF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS000
iz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& ZBF B HERE
Profit before tax BR A5 A A 21,793 19,352
Adjustments for: IR
Finance costs B%ER 7 612 378
Bank interest income RITH B HA 5 (1,110) (2,022)
Dividend income from listed investmentsat IR AFELIEZ AR £
fair value through profit or loss REREWA 5 (249) (280)
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HEWE - Bz REHER
and equipment, net ZWesEEE 6 (12) -
Fair value losses/(gains), net: DNTEER/ (W) F5E
Financial assets at fair value through BATELSEZARZH
profit or loss BEE (741) 2,695
Investment properties REME (500) 1,425
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - BERSHBITE
equipment 6 730 691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREREZFE 6 1,835 2,771
Impairment of trade receivables, net EWE ZRIREFE 6 182 363
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hip & = 6 3,246 3,011
Equity-settled share-based payment e 4 B AR D 2 R 2
expense 430 752
26,216 29,136
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERLD,/(5n) (16) 589
Increase in trade receivables e E Z R FRIE N (6,487) (1,340)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits T8 FUB ~ 17 & & H 1 JEUR
and other receivables iR,/ (3Eh) 4,359 (960)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD,/(3EM) (852) 188
Decrease in trade payables, other payables R E ZERM - HMER
and accruals FIBERES AR (9,207) (1,277)
Increase in contract liabilities SHAEEEMN 4,521 5,494
Cash generated from operations REEBRERS 18,534 31,830
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) BB/ (BH) BEFGEH 1,292 (3,578)
Overseas taxes refunded/(paid) BRE/(BE)8INFIE 12 (322)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMBCHESRE
ek 19,838 27,930
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

AR E RS RNER(E)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tRHLAEA

2021 2020
it b5 g 325
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities RETEIMGEZREMEFHE 19,838 27,930
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R EZEFIBZHERE
Bank interest received BUERTTHI S 1,110 2,022
Dividends received from listed investments at %23 (B 45 TE&?&)\EEZ ik
fair value through profit or loss EREMA 249 280
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BERREER
equipment (161) (494)
Additions to other intangible assets RNEEMBREE - (4,307)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, ~ HEWE - HE LR EEE
plant and equipment FTiS /1A 15 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATESERAEY
at fair value through profit or loss - debt Eﬁ‘%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?ﬂﬁ
investment —EBEE - 2,535
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HERATELERAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss IS EEMBGHIEA
- money market certificate -5 ﬁgﬁ%ri - 43,267
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BRI TR L/ (1 (258) 70
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with 45 & B [ 21| 8 B 218 = ([ )E] Z
original maturity of more than three months ~ #E3X #1777 505
when acquired 29,469 53,560
Net cash flows from investing activities REFHMGE CRENEFE 30,424 96,933
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING METDRAZASRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of shares under the restricted share & B B[R &l f% (5 82 E) 5T 811B T
award scheme Bin (471) (235)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFNAS B (3,035) (2,368)
Dividend paid BERRE (29,744) (19,789)
Interest paid ERFLE (612) (378)
Net cash flows used in financing activities MEFRSMECREREFHE (33,862) (22,770)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERSEAREEEL
EQUIVALENTS 0 EE 16,400 102,093
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of HycReRERREEE
period 227,711 147,170
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [E R & &) 7 §/ 2% 678 53
CASH AND CASHEQUIVALENTSATENDOF HIA VB e REFARLEE
PERIOD 244,789 249,316
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND REREAREEELBRIN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HRRETBRRAKATZ
condensed consolidated statement of e hZERRGEE
financial position 283,241 249,316
Non-pledged bank deposits with original WESRISHABB=EAZ
maturity of more than three months when EHERRITTER
acquired (38,452) -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HRRERERERAMTZ
condensed consolidated statement of BehERBREEE i
cash flows 244,789 1249316
i
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS AR AR B

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
application software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the Government Electronic Trading
Services (“GETS"), cloud services and other related value-added
services;

. provision of information technology (“IT”) solutions
implementation and application software development;
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing
services; business process outsourcing (“BPO”") services; and
provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with related
design, implementation and ongoing support services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”").

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read
in conjunction with the Group’s annual consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those applied in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, except for the adoption of the following revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) for the first
time for the current period’s financial information.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-
free rate ("RFR"). The phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets
and liabilities when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest
rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities
from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement
when an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity's financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment did not
have any impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in the
provision of enterprise applications software and e-business
services for enterprises including the provision of enterprise
applications software with implementation and ongoing
support services; and the GETS, cloud services and other
related value-added services;

(b) the solutions and integration services segment that primarily
engages in the provision of IT solutions implementation and
application software development; provision of IT and related
operation/infrastructure outsourcing services; BPO services;
and provision of IT systems and network infrastructure with
related design, implementation and ongoing support services;
and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The
adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that unallocated interest income,
unallocated other income and gains, net, unallocated foreign
exchange differences, net, corporate and other unallocated
depreciation, and corporate and other unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these
liabilities are managed on a group basis.

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the
current and prior periods.

4.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

(a) Operating segments

RETHEN (B])

(a) RBEDI

Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
ERR% BATEREHES kg g
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z¥--F -B-%%F CEC-F CBCRE CEC-F CECRE CEC-F CECRE
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) ~(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(RE%R) (REER) (REBR) (REE%)  (REBR) (REED)  (REER)  (REED)
HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEr AT FiEr AT FEn FET 7En FET
Segment revenue: AHBA
Salesto external customers  HEFIREF
(note5) (Biysts) 79,060 73557 45,207 8713 1,003 138 152000 117408
Otherincome and gains, net  ELAITA B iz 5 1,021 888 12 8 263 20 1,206' 1253"
Total 4% 80,081 74445 45219 43,798 1,266 418 126,566 118,661
Segment results THEE 23,031 21,958 6,922 10,581 2,470 (4457) 32,423 28,082
Reconcilltion: HE -
Unallocated interest income 7 7 B2 %| S A 110 2002
Unallocated other income and 7 7 Bt £t A B
gains, net k] - 2387
Unallocated foreign exchange 77 el 1 = /54
differences, net (259) (104)
Corporate and other PERERRARRE
unallocated depreciation (284) (241)
Corporate and other PEREMAIRRY
unallocated expenses (11,197) (12,794)
Profit before tax REATR A 21,793 19352
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. K& o IER (&)

* This represents the consolidated revenue of HKS125,270,000
(2020: HKS117,408,000) in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These comprise the consolidated other income and gains,

net, of HK$2,406,000 (2020: HKS5,662,000) in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

—T—FREBERE | RBRGEEARAT )/

(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #& I (E)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
EREH BARRRERRE k% hg
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2 2 ZEC%E Z3C%

ZRz-% TR ZB=-f ToR ZB=-f T-A ZB=-f% T4

AR=tR  =t-B XxA=tE =t-8B AR=tR =t-H #A=tE =t-H

(Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)

(R&ER)  (GEn) (REBR)  (LEn)  (REER) (@R (REER) (4%

HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000

FEn AT FEn FET FEn FET FEr FET

Segment assets THEE 200,263 209,503 83,635 76,581 76,961 75,726 360,859 361,810

Reconcillation: H%

Corporate and other TEREMRAREE

unallocated assets 291,734 305,458

Total assets BEBE 652,593 667,268

Segment liabilities 288E 92,910 97,949 29,504 26,950 693 693 123,107 125,592

Reconcillation: HE -

Corporate and other PERERAAREE

unallocated liabilities 21,673 26,117

Total liabilties e 144,780 151,709

EREHGEEESXZES
A 125,270,000/ (= F = F4F :
117,408,000 7T)

BREREIHLGE A B kA4 A
H e A R Y 25 )F 58 5 2,406,000
BT (= F = F 4 : 5662,000%
L) e




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

MR (E)
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. K& 5 &R (&)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) #& 23 (E)
Solutions and
Application Services Integration Services Investments Total
& Fi R 5 BARRRERRH k% X
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--f -Z-%F CZBE--f -Z-%F CE--%f -S-%F CZE--f -5°%
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER) (REBR) (REER)  (REER) (REER)  (REER) (REER)
HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000
7 T FEn AT 7L AT FEL AT
Other segment information: 412 8&# :
Net fair value gains/(losses) on % & A TFENE/
investment properties (BB 58 - - - - 500 (1425) 500 (1425)
Net fair value gains/(losses on %A FEABENEZ
financial assets at fairvalue B 75 & E A FENE
through profit orloss /(BB 58 - - - - 41 (2699) 41 (2695)
Amortisation of other EhEvEEES
intangible assets 3,246 301 - - - - 3,246 301
Depreciation it 1,031 1,167 290 m - i 1321 1455
Corporate and other CEREMKAENE
unallocated depreciation 1,244 2,007
2,565 3462
Impairment losses recognised/ 7 &84 & B A R 32
(reversed)inthe condensed / (BE1) 2 EEE
consolidated statementof ¥ %+
profit orloss, net* (163) 306 345 57 - - 182 363
Capital expenditure™ BRRTH 99 316 2 439 - - 128 4m
Corporate and other PERERXARER
unallocated capital Ax
expenditure 3 90
161 4801
* Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed *  BEREHES S m X ATER
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the KB JE AR % 5 50 R B AT &
application services segment of HKS 172,000 (2020: HK$699,000) REKIRE 2 5827 /E Eﬁ" v

*%

and the solutions and integration services segment of
HK$346,000 (2020: HKS125,000), respectively, and impairment
losses reversed in the condensed consolidated statement of
profit or loss attributable to the application services segment
of HK$335,000 (2020: HK$393,000) and the solutions and
integration services segment of HKS1,000 (2020: HK$68,000),
respectively.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment and other intangible assets.

*%

5l 17200087 (ZFE=FF :
699000/ # T ) K 346,000 T (—

E T EFAF 0 12500087C) 0 XK
REFEAAR & 18 75 25 AT RE [B1 5 1 JE

JHHRTE 57 BB R B Sk 52 e B B AR
B2 58,2 18 518 77 5l 7 335,000
BT (ZF Z FF 1 393,000
L) K 1,00087C (= F = F4F :
68,000/57T) °

BRI BIEFREYFE  BER
REURAMELEE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

(b) Geographical information

P IEERR M (E

e s ER (F)
(b) HEER

(i) Revenue from external customers (i) FKEHSPREFZHA
Hong Kong
and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
ERREMER HE FEI A Fake)
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZB--% -“T-EF ZB--f -“T-%F ZB--§ -E-TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (REER) (REER) (REER) (RLEK) (REER)
HKs'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: DEHBA

Sales to external customers  HE FHREF 99,454 95,431 25,816 21977 125,270 117,408
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WABRTIARFATEN A

customers. =

(ii) Non-current assets (i) HFREBEE

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
ANA=+H +Z-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (& EZ)
HKS’000 HKS000
FET FHET
Hong Kong BE 144,662 146,237
Mainland China AR A 119,649 122,980
264,311 269,217

The non-current asset information is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes financial instruments
and deferred tax assets.

—T—GREHERE | MMAGEESRAT )0
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4. K& o IER (&)

(c) Information about a major customer () —HBEXTEEFZEH

Revenue from an external customer individually amounting to RE—BINRE P 2 WA E B
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue: REFBIKA10%, A E -

For the period ended 30 June 2021, revenue from a major HE-_ZT-_ -4 A=TH1
customer of HK$33,453,000 (2020: HK$29,548,000) was HE K- RBIBEFPZHEA
derived from transactions with the customer reported in the £33,453,0008 70 (ZE T F :
application services segment and the solutions and integration 29,548,000 7T) © B A & F 2R
services segment. B2IRNERRS D E REERA

RRERRBOBOEFLRZS -

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA BERARWKEFEEE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTAT -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tTRHILAEAR

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEETF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (RIEEZ)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers REZEF&SHXHRA 124,267 117,270
Revenue from other sources REHEMARFRHWA
Gross rental income from investment EYE 2B WARTE R
properties and interest income from EBRE 2R EWA
treasury investments 1,003 138
125,270 117,408
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5.

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

REFEFEHHKA
(i) DHFUAZH

Solutions and

WA - H WA R Wz 5 (&)

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRARR
FE A PR 7% £ R g
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBERZ) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET FET
For the six months ended BE-Z-—5XAH8
30 June 2021 =+tHiIXEA
Segments o
Types of goods or services Em iR E B
Sales of goods and provision of HEE m MR B -
software, GETS and BPO services BREFESZRBER
EBRIEINA RS 19,069 559 19,628
Provision of software implementation 12t 84 & j5 &
and related services, IT solutions MHERE - BaEHE
implementation and related RRTRERR
services 1B R AR 75 29,670 21,050 50,720
Maintenance services #EE RS 30,321 23,598 53,919
Total revenue from contracts with REBRFELMBIRA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267
Geographical markets i & T 5
Hong Kong and others BB RAEAM 55,388 43,178 98,566
Mainland China FRER A 23,672 2,029 25,701
Total revenue from contracts with KERFEALIMBAIA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON TS
Goods and services transferredata N E—RFEEEES R &
point in time AR5 19,069 559 19,628
Services transferred over time R — R 8 N R 7% 59,991 44,648 104,639
Total revenue from contracts with RERFELHRBIA
customers 79,060 45,207 124,267

—FRERE | R GEEAR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

5. WA - HBW AR W35 (&)

REFEFEHNHKA ()
(i) BHFUAEZH ()

Solutions and

Application Integration
Services Services Total
BRIR T2 &
FEF AR SR 4aEE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEEZ) (CREER) RESE®R)
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET
For the six months ended BE-Z-ZF XA
30 June 2020 =+tHiIXEAR
Segments o
Types of goods or services Em iR E B
Sales of goods and provision of HEEmREMHEESG -
software, GETS and BPO services BREFESZRBER
EBmIEINA RS 18,303 745 19,048
Provision of software implementation 12 84 & j5 &2
and related services, IT solutions MHERE - BaEHE
implementation and related BRATRERR
services 1B R AR 75 26,501 18,482 44,983
Maintenance services HERTE 28,753 24,486 53,239
Total revenue from contracts with REBRFELMBIRA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270
Geographical markets i & 35
Hong Kong and others BB RAEAM 53,054 42,339 95,393
Mainland China AR A D 20,503 1,374 21,877
Total revenue from contracts with KERFELIMBIA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270
Timing of revenue recognition [ ON TS
Goods and services transferredata N E—FEEEES R &
point in time AR5 18,303 745 19,048
Services transferred over time R — R fE N R 7% 55,254 42,968 98,222
Total revenue from contracts with RKERFELHMBIKRA
customers 73,557 43,713 117,270
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA - HbW AR Wz F5E (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEZEFAHWEA (8)
(ii) Performance obligations (i) BEHEF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sales of goods and provision of software, GETS and BPO
services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon product/service
delivery, where payment in advance is normally required, and
the balance is generally due within 30 to 60 days from the date
of delivery.

Provision of software implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 to 60
days from the date of billing.

Provision of IT solutions implementation and related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days
from the date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is
retained by customers until the end of the nursing period as
the Group’s entitlement to the final payment is conditional on
the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the respective contracts.

Maintenance services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment in advances are normally required
before rendering the services. Maintenance service contracts
are in general for a period of one year.

= RS | MM EREEERAT 33

A B SR B 40 B T M0 B RHE I
-

HEEmRIEHREY BIFETF
B ZIRBEREZEZ REINHIRE
BHEARER REXFEE
B — M EBIE LA K A g
— BRI HEF30E60H K
;}fﬂo

FEH B B e R 1A AR 7%
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30260 HWEFH] -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(iij) Performance obligations (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining

5. WA - HBW AR W35 (&)

REEFEHHWA ()
(i) EXIEE (&)

performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as E'E (ﬂi\@ TTREP D RETT) &
at 30 June are as follows: BIRSBEAOT
2021 2020
—E2-— —E-TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZK) (RegEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Amounts expected to be recognised as SHEERERARA
revenue:
Within one year —F R 64,440 61,206
After one year Al — 1,098 -
65,538 61,206
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining EPREHRTBERATEENRZSZE
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised REeBBEHBER —FEER 7% ¢
as revenue after one year relate to maintenance services, of AE R E/\fﬁi TN E B Y 4 E R
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied within HeMBEMENEZHR TEL
five years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated BN 5 E RS A B —
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to ERNERAKA - FRIBEHS
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts BAWTBEZBEIATERE -

disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tTHLAEA

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (REEEZ)
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Other income and gains, net H g A R Wi F 88

Bank interest income RITF B U A 1,110 2,022
Government subsidies* BUAT 7 BA * - 2,387
Value-added tax refund received U B 12 (B Rt iR 7 426 330

Dividend income from listed investments at X A E&LIBR AR 2 £
fair value through profit or loss AR EHRA 249 280
Others HAh 621 643
2,406 5,662

* The subsidies in the prior period were granted under the
Employment Support Scheme by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). There were no
unfulfilled conditions, relating to the subsidies.

* REHBRBIEAE S EESF
7T I BT ([ 258 45 B 7T B I 1B
T BRI R E R T - ZEH
B A [ 75 R JERE S B f A
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRMFE(E)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRB{ADEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting): ANEE AR LR (GEA)
T3 %18
For the six months ended 30 June
BEASA=1THLEAKEAR
2021 2020
—BC--F —EEF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (RisEz)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFERAE 18,547 18,389
Cost of services provided IR AR A A 40,120 33,140
Depreciation of property, plant and W BREREETE
equipment* 730 691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZINE 1,835 2,771
Amortisation of other intangible assets** W s 3,246 3,011
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant HJ' EWE - BELRKEBEE 2
and equipment, net W o 5 58 (12) -
Employee benefit expense™™: BERHAFZ™
Wages, salaries and allowances and other TE He EMEEMER
benefits 71,396 68,199
Equity-settled share-based payment P 1 45 B DARR 19 2 T 2
expense 430 752
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIREFET &30 CERE
(defined contribution schemes) fiﬂ) 3,602 3,391
Less: Amount capitalised in other intangible & : R E M EF & EE AN 2
assets il - (4,062)
75,428 68,280
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEUE 5 R BURE SR 182 363
*  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the period of * B ?@% /*E& % 1.2 9T & 56,000

HKS56,000 (2020: HKS62,000) is included in “Cost of sales and services”
on the face of the condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**  Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HKS3,246,000
(2020: HKS3,011,000) is included in “Other expenses”on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software

products of HKS10,968,000 (2020: HK$9,926,000) and utility billing
system of HKS4,155,000 (2020: Nil), respectively.

# Inclusive of an amount of HK$40,120,000 (2020: HK533,140,000)
classified under “Cost of services provided”above.

FrRERRE | B

tRmEEaRAT 35

BT (ZF ZFF 1 620005 7T) A
B e Ba &k 2 [HERREK XK
/7\7 °

** %Wﬁ/ﬂﬂfﬁﬁéﬁffwyéow%i
T F —F4F 1 3011,0005 ) A B
BRiRE B . [BMEST A -

. BIEEEEREERRAFER
VE-EX W k.
10,968,000, (= F = F1F : 9 925 000

JBEr) K 4,1550008 0 (ZF ZFF :
) o

# BIE 585 L [E R HERER A 2
Z(5840,120,0008 0 (= F = F4F :
33,140,000/%7T) °



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

7.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense arising from discounted lease liabilities of an
amount of HK$612,000 (2020: HK$378,000) has been recognised
and classified under finance costs in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit and loss for the period ended 30 June 2021.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the period, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is
a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profit tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessment profits of
this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessment profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%). Taxes on
profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

MEE M

AR ERBEESE 2 M B RE 612000
BT (ZZEZZF 13780008 7L) ER
HEe—_Z-—F~A=+HItHHEZ
MAGEEaRNERL DB RUE
&R -

Fri&®t

EBEFERIBEAHMAREBE
A BETERTUE AT E165% (ZF
ZTF 1 165%) EHEE - EAEE—
M B A B AT A& TS 5 AR
E B o %M B 2 R A B % 2,000,000
T (ZZ —Z 4 :2,000,00078 7T) JE:F
T M) 45142 8.25% (= F — T 4E : 8.25%)
WA T H R FE R R T BIR 16.5% (=
T FF 1 16.5%) HE o HA R ER
REMzBHEDREAEECEER
FTEBR el iRz EARRTE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=1TRIEAEAR

2021 2020
—B-—F —B-FF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZX) (RegEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Current - Hong Kong BN ER— &
Charge for the period B 1,137 551
Overprovision in prior periods BITAEZ IR A - (402)
Current - Elsewhere BVER — H b 3h (=
Charge for the period B 49 94
Overprovision in prior periods BT HE 2 IR (195) -
Deferred PRAE (461) (741)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the period HRFHESIE(Re) 85 530 (498)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

9. DIVIDENDS 9. BRE

(@) Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has @ RPHHEG&EREZ ZE=2k
determined that an interim dividend of HK$0.06 (2020: an FERANR_ZE-_—FNAZ-H(EH
interim dividend of HK$0.05) in cash per ordinary share should M) YRR &M 2 AR R E R
be paid to the shareholders of the Company whose names PR AIR IR A BRI S &A% 0.06
appear in the Register of Members on Thursday, 2 September BT (ZEZFF : R HIR B.0.05
2021. BIT) °

(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial year approved (b) PAH HAEAFEEHL JE 2 b (R B B
during the interim period. EZRE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgEZ)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Final dividend in respect of the previous &4t f I /A R B BARS R 1 B
financial year, approved and paid during B8 BB B 8 2 KEARK
the interim period of HK$0.12 (2020: final B &R E@%0.12/87T
dividend of HK$0.08) per ordinary share (ZEZ=F  REKRES
0.08/87T) 29,939 19,959
Less: Dividend for shares held under W REBEARRQ R ARSI
the Company’s restricted BENETEIRA 2 ki
share award scheme Frig i & (195) (170)
29,744 19,789

—T—FREBERE | R RGEEARAT 37/



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 10. B AR EERBRRELBRE

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 247,635,478 (2020: 247,103,241) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed vesting of
all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

Shares

gl

BEREABFSENBRESA R LR
B% B SR FEAG AN BR RS A M AN B B 1T
T3 IR N AE 19 81 247,635,478 % (=&
T T 247,103,241 %) HE - W 5k 5
BRAARBRSIRMEEFEIE T AT
FRDIEH TR -

BREBERMNSBIOREERARER
PR AR R PR AE A B R A A E - St E AT
Rz EBERNEFORRFTESRE
ABENAAZPBABHTEBREA
AR BERRAARBEARRBE L ZM
EEEEERAR RN EEFERB
B ARAEREESTARTZER
Bt BGETE -

AEERERLE RN AT AN T

=

BEREANREERN RS QA EAE
PR R A s MIET & -

12

Number of shares
RAER

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=Z+tHLAEAR

2021 2020
—BZ-F —EEF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REgsEz)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T ESREARZFFTHIBAL
in issue during the period used in the basic 277 & A% hniE F 15 £
earnings per share calculation 247,635,478 247,103,241
Effect of dilution — weighted average number #5852 — LB hIRE L8 -
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIR AN R B PR A 1) 228
Company’s restricted share award sHEIRH 2 AR HIR G5
scheme 1,108,465 1,257,799
248,743,943 248,361,040
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

M. YE BERRKE

2021 2020
—BC--F —EEF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeE%)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—H—B  EEEHE 1,987 3,183
Additions NE 161 777
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — R BT B A 7 - 106
Disposals e (3) (656)
Depreciation provided during the period/year 8,/ 47 & B (730) (1,437)
Exchange realignment ME W S 3 14
Net carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December W7<AB=+H, +=A
=+—R REFE 1,418 1,987
12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REY =
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feFZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEKHE 66,290 70,091
Disposals & - (2,860)
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments A F{EFAE 2 Iz, (Ei8)
R 500 (941)
Carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December W /N"A=+H +—-A
=+—HZEREE 66,790 66,290

=
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various properties used in its
operations. Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
1 and 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the period/year are as follows:

13. HE

REBMEREEA

AEBHRERNEZETEANSEYE
MEEAK - WEHEE—RNBEHR—
E=F - —RMEF  AREWELKHE
EEEERIOMETAEEUIIAL -

(a) EAEEZE

B/ ENAEEERELENER
HEREHNT :

Properties
Y/

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —E_EF

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (& &E=Z)

HKs’000 HKS000

FET FET

As at 1 January mn—H—H 4,983 8,486
Additions NE - 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications FHEZE v &t - (2,303)
Depreciation charge e (1,835) (4,885)
Exchange realignment & % 244 (16)

As at 30 June/31 December RANA=+8/

+ZA=+—H 3,392 4,983
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BRI EE (&)
13. LEASES (CONTINUED) 13. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAHEA (HE)

7

(b) Lease liabilities

(c)

(b) HERME

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

8,/ F RS A R E RS

during the period/year are as follows: g -
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E_FF
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (FeEZ)
HKs$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEEE 7,038 9,674
New leases HE - 3,701
Remeasurement on lease modifications FlEEE 2 BHE - (2,303)
Accretion of interest recognised B/ FRERFBEE
during the period/year 612 1,155
Payments (NEN (3,647) (5,173)
Exchange realignment PE X F8 % 259 (16)
Carrying amount at 30 June/ WRA=Z+8/
31 December TZA=T—BZKREAE 4,262 7,038
Analysed into: ST
Current portion mENER 2,523 4,614
Non-current portion EMBNAL D 1,739 2,424

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

(c) BERAEEMMBSERNSERWT -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=+tHLAEAR

2021 2020

—E-—F —ZEEF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEEZ) (CRisEZ)

HKS’000 HKS000

FET FET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZFE 612 378
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {# A& E 2 T & 1,835 2,771
Expenses relating to short-term leases FHEHEEZHAY 342 36
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R IBE R A S EE 2,789 3,185

—FhRE | B RGaEEEGRAR 4




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

13. LEASES (CONTINUED)

13. 8 (&)

14.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) consisting of
one (2020: one) commercial property in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and one (2020: one) industrial property in Hong
Kong under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the period was HK$1,003,000 (2020:
HK$98,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

REBMERSHAA

REERBLEEHERH  BKERKE
#@%(Bﬁi‘ﬂz)ﬁ%ﬁ ’F]%ME’\‘:F'%E/\
HMB((HRDH—EB(ZE=F
—IE)P%%%%&MECE,%E’J—IE(:
ToFF . —H) TERAYE-HER
1%%”\ MERBPINEHRIES - K
SERHRN#ERAES A A 1,003,000

BIL(ZZE 4 : 98,000/ 7T) °

REeERREER  AEEREER
MPAIZZ FAIBUBH G EHER K
KEAR M 2 REER RERE AT -

30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF

AA=+E +-A=+-F

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZX) (f &%)

HKs$’000 HKS’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 1,784 1,858
After one year but within two years —FRERMFA 296 1,222
2,080 3,080

GOODWILL 14. &
(Unaudited)
(REEX)
HK$’000
FET
30 June 2021 —E-—-FxXA=1+H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2021 R-E-——F—F—HANN T —4F
and 30 June 2021 AAZ+BRARERE 135,001
(Audited)
(feFEZz)
HKS'000
FET
31 December 2020 —E-E2F+=-A=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2020 R _TF— )EJ AR A KR E 134,485
Acquisition of a subsidiary WehE — BB A 516
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2020 A -ZE-ZFF+ - =+ —HXAKKHEE 135,001

47  Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2021



15. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

15. Rt B EE

Deferred
development Customer
costs relationships Software Total
i1
RN EFH% g4 BE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
30 June 2021 “ZE--fXA=TH
Costat 1 January 2021, net of accumulated A =T -—F—A—H 2 A
amortisation and impairment Nk 2HEHERRE 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
Amortisation provided during the period RER SR - (827) (2,419) (3,246)
At 30 June 2021 RZZ_—F A=1H 31,31 4,839 21,560 57,710
At 30 June 2021: WZE-—4$A=TH:
Cost A 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2t # 4 KR E (13,026) (9,928) (24,468) (47,422)
Net carrying amount FEFE 31,31 4,839 21,560 57,710
Deferred
development Customer
costs  relationships Software Total
FB A EPHBE i it
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(BER) (&BER) (BER) (&ER)
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FHET FET FHET FHET
31 December 2020 “EZEZE+ZA=+-H
Costat 1 January 2020, net of accumulated A =T -ZTF—A—HZHA
amortisation and impairment MR HERRE 26,468 7,322 26,209 59,999
Additions NE 4,843*% - - 4,843
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B R - - 2347 2,347
Amortisation provided during the year AEFBIERE - (1,656) (4,577) (6,233)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZTF+=-RA=+—H 31,31 5,666 23,979 60,956
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZE+ZA=+—AkR
at 1 January 2021: —T--%5—-R—-H:
Cost A 44,337 14,767 46,028 105,132
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25t 8 &R E (13,026) (9,101) (22,049) (44,176)
Net carrying amount ERFE 31,311 5,666 23,979 60,956
* In the prior year, additions of deferred development costs of * RBAEE BEFHELLSE

HKS4,843,000 were developed internally.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES

16. B E 5 IR

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —E_FF

AA=t+H +TZH=1—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade receivables FEUE 5 IR 54,846 48,359
Impairment AE (3,972) (3,861)
50,874 44,498

The Group’s trading terms with its customers vary from contract to
contract or depending on the specific arrangements with individual
customers, and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and
on credit. For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit
period is generally within 60 days, except for certain projects with
longer implementation schedules or for major or specific customers,
where the period may be extended. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding trade receivables and overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

AEBZXZGEFRERMER G DR
FEREMNEP 2R HEME - Al
BREEIMNR  AENRESRE - B
FUBRRPAETRIZERPME -
EREEH-—RTZNe0X - A
TEAEREIHRE IRT2AEE
P AIRREEH AEE—EES
EHEREEZBREZRR SR
EEENEMENAMFRGR - AR
MUY ERNEFRREZEREHRTE
ERAERARRELEMEESESE -
FENE 5 BRI T A o

RBEHEEER - BWE 5 ERRIR
HRAYYEMBREZRESTT |

allowance, is as follows:

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —ECERF

ANA=+H +ZHA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (&&= =Z)

HKs$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —EARN 39,054 34,828
1 to 3 months —Z==1@A 8,136 6,163
4 to 6 months A EDS 2,782 2,548
7 to 12 months tE=+ =R 902 959
50,874 44,498
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16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

PSRRI (E)

16. B E 5 Bk ()

FEWE B 2 BER R EEEI T

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (feFZz)

HKS$’000 HKS000

FET FET

At beginning of period/year HER ) 3,861 3,395
Impairment losses, net B E R FRE 182 408
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE— R B AR - 3
Exchange realignment ME 5, 55 2 (71) 55
At end of period/year LR 23 3,972 3,861

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

K& RS A EER A BB R [ TR E
oM AETEFEMEEER - BEXT)
ERNBHMBEYUETE At ERREA
EMEERENBEBRAENERA
BEFIR B AT R R A R
BANSEKLAISEEH -

TREHANEEEBBEERMETER
EWE ZEFNEERRER

At 30 June 2021 R=ZB=—FXA=+H
Past due
B
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over 3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
FERE —1{8 -z =f@A
PEW R IE BN EA AR =fEA HE st
Expected creditlossrate ~ TEHIEE BB % 100% 0.00% 0.00% 0.02% 4.85% 7.24%
Gross carryingamount R (E
(HK$'000) (FET) 3,893 39,575 4,074 5,717 1,587 54,846
Expected credit losses BHEEESR
(HK$'000) (FET) 3,893 1 - 1 77 3,972

T FRRE | MERGEREARAR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

16. B E 5 IR ()

At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB_TF+_-_A=+—H
Past due
palt
Credit-
impaired Less than 1to3 Over3
receivables Current 1 month months months Total
EERE — 1@ -z ={EA
W SRR BN & AR =f8A A E B
Expected credit lossrate ~ TEHE EEE R 100% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 11.26% 7.98%
Gross carryingamount  FREIB(E
(HK$'000) (FAT) 3,585 34,891 5,029 2,403 2,451 48,359
Expected credit losses EHEERE
(HK$'000) (FAT) 3,585 - - - 276 3,861
17. CONTRACT ASSETS 17. BHEE
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—E—F —ETTHF
RA=+tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (feEZ)
HKS$’000 HKS000
FET FET
Contract assets arising from: BREERBUATSRIEA
Sales of goods and provision of software, HEERMEHREY BUFE
GETS and BPO services FB 5 RB REBFREN
# AR5 3,538 3,060
Provision of software implementation RETHEELAERS - &
and related services, IT solutions AR ERA S RE M M AA
implementation and related services el 17,169 16,448
Maintenance services HERK 393 740
21,100 20,248

Contract assets are mainly recognised for revenue earned from
the provision of software implementation and related services, IT
solutions implementation and related services as the receipt of
consideration is based on the billing process. Included in contract
assets for provision of software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services are unbilled
amounts of revenue. Upon completion of the billing of the revenue
from contract customers, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables. The increase in contract assets
during the six months ended 30 June 2021 was mainly the result of
an increase in the provision of software implementation and related

services at the end of the period.

46

HRRENRRYE2ENFHERE
MER  RETFERLBBERS - &
AR RR T RE R MBRRG G
WAHERBENEE RHEHE
ERERRE  EAMEBRTRE
i RARERGTASNEE T RRAK
BRATHE - TRENEFPKRARK
RER ZSCHARAGNEENS
HEENM I BRERKESIRS -BE
TS —FRA=THLERNEANE
WEBEERMDEZARNBREHREN
B e S AR R AR 75 18 DO AT R o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

17. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 17. EHNEE (&)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is EHEAEMNTERKE S EERENAT
as follows:
30June 31 December
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_THF
ANA=tR +t=-HA=1+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (FeEZ)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Within one year 21,100 20,248

18. BAVPEKBRBEARZHBE

PROFIT OR LOSS -3

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETTF

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBER) (Eiz)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Debt investment, at fair value BAFEFEZEBHRE 2,100 2,100
Listed equity investments, at fair value BATEFE ETRAERE 8,063 7,322
Derivative financial instruments, at fair value* & A F{EzHE 2 ST T A 61 61
10,224 9,483
Portion classified as current assets NEAERDEERND (8,124) (7,383)
Portion classified as non-current assets DIERIERBEEZ D 2,100 2,100
* The derivative financial instruments represented call options to acquire * PTE T AEWE—FIH B Al

addition 40% equity interest in a subsidiary. SN 40% R T 1 7 09 3R FE A 1E -
The listed equity investments were classified as financial assets at ITTRAREAEREEEMES A

RELAFERBRR ARIMBEE -

fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The debt investment was mandatorily classified as financial asset at BEERE T ARSI S B RL AT E
fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are not KERARCZHBEE AEHSHOH

EREWIFEIENTNAE RFE -

solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 30 June 2021, the Group’s listed equity investments with a RZZEZ—FXA=1+H AEBEZ L
carrying value of approximately HK$8,063,000 (31 December 2020: IR AN 3% & AR TH 18 49 /% 8,063,000 % 7T
HK$7,322,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities —E-FF+TZA=+—H 7322000
granted to the Group. BT EANGEETAREE . —RIIRT

BE(EIKIR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

19. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

19. ENEZRN - HAENKE

ACCRUALS Rt RIA

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —TTHF

ANA=+H +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REER) (Eiz)

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Trade payables ERE SRR 14,004 18,094
Other payables Eo4th JE ST IR 26,634 26,709
Accruals FEET R IE 17,273 22,315
57,911 67,118
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARSEEILS (57,413) (66,581)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DEERIERE BEE 498 537

An ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBEEHHEEER BNEZHERNIR
HREBZRESFTMT

30 June 31 December

2021 2020

—E-—fF ZEEF

ANA=+H +Z-A=+—8

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (& Z)

HKS$’000 HKS000

FET FHET

Within 1 month —EAR 9,531 10,008
1 to 3 months —Z=={@A 3,274 7,181
4t0 6 months e (EPE 557 216
Over 6 months NMEALE 642 689
14,004 18,094

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally JENE SRR AR —#iK30K

settled on 30-day terms.

HAPR 4508 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BA SRR P RE

(4#&)

20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. EHEE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BHEEFBEOT :
30 June 31 December
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —TTHF
RA=tH +tZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (Ez)
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Advances received from customers B E 250
Sales of goods and provision of software, SHEEmMIREEH TS
GETS and BPO services FE 5 RS & EFREIN
RS 1,921 5,898
Provision of software implementation RERHERLIEERTS - &
and related services, IT solutions SRR AR T R E M &R
implementation and related services A R 7% 20,734 21,229
Maintenance services #EE RS 42,883 33,890
65,538 61,017
Portion classified as current liabilities DEARSEEILS (64,440) (58,708)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DERIEREBEEI D 1,098 2,309

The majority of the contract liabilities mainly include advances VN
received to render software implementation and related services,
IT solutions implementation and related services, and maintenance
services. The increase in contract liabilities during the six months B
ended 30 June 2021 was mainly due to an increase in advances
received from customers in relation to maintenance services at the

end of the period.

1 Ko A8 B8 R 755 A R 4 7

NERHA
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

21. IEERIE

B/ N EERBEENRAE

“=4

period/year are as follows: AT
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE
Losses
available for Temporary
offsetting differences
against arising from
future taxable contract
profits liabilities Total
EIR:
KEARRER REGHNEE
RRRNEE ZERER wmE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEX) (REEER) (REEER)
HKs’000 HKs’000 HKs’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 NZE——F—H—H 824 2,320 3,144
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ ERREF A/ (F0F) & 87
to the condensed consolidated 4R A EZm KR ZIELER
statement of profit or loss during T8
the period (213) 41 (172)
Exchange realignment PE W - 39 39
Gross deferred tax assets at RZEZ—F A=+
30 June 2021 FIEER A EEER 611 2,400 3,011
Deferred tax liabilities EEHESE
Fair value
adjustments
Deferred arising from
Revaluation of development acquisitionof ~ Withholding
properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
Wi
EEX WERRZ
NEER HRREA ATERE SEbE aE
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (REBR) (REER)  (REER)  (REEN)
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FEx FiEx FEx FEx FEx
At 1 January 2021 RmZ2-—F-A—H 386 5,166 7,071 764 13,387
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the WAk GEA BRERA RS
condensed consolidated statement of profit & ZEEH B
or loss during the period - - (754) 121 (633)
Exchange realignment fiE 5 R - - - 3 3
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 30 June 2021 R =E-—%;A=+H
BREREEEEE 386 5,166 6,317 888 12,757
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PSRRI (E)

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21, IEIERIIE (48)

Deferred tax assets RIEHIBEE
Losses
available for Temporary
offsetting differences
against arising from
future taxable contract
profits liabilities
Gl
HIERKER KREGHNEE
83 ) 80 5 18 ZHERER
(Audited) (Audited)
(RER) (RER)
HKs'000 HKs'000 HKSs'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 N_E-_TF—H—H 1,434 2,288 3,722

Deferred tax charged to the FAREGEERRZ
consolidated statement of profit & JE % 18
or loss during the year (610) (134) (744)

Exchange realignment ENEEEE - 166 166

e

=

RZE=ZFF+_-A
—t+—HELHRIEBEE

Gross deferred tax assets at
31 December 2020

EERH 824 2,320 3,144
Deferred tax liabilities EIETRIBEEE
Fair value
adjustments

Deferred  arising from
Revaluationof ~ development — acquisitionof ~ Withholding

properties costs  subsidiaries taxes Total
Wi
Bt MWERAZ

WEER  FEREA  RTESRE il ik

(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(27 (BE7) (BE7) (BE7) (BE7)
HKS$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000

FET FET FET FET FET

At 1January 2020 RZ2-ZF-A—H 826 4,367 8,148 608 13,949
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE-FHRBAR - - 387 - 387
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the FRNR/ GIARABERZ

consolidated statement of profit or loss EERE

during the year (314) 799 (1,464) 148 (831)
Exchange realignment fiE 5 R - - - 8 8
Disposal of an investment property ME—ERENE (126) - - - (126)
Gross deferred tax liabilties at RIBZZET-A=+-A

31 December 2020 EEHBERBER 386 5,166 7,071 764 13387

|\
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 21, IEERIIE ()

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the condensed consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

HEZJBN ETEERBREENR
BECREREAMBINR AL -
UTIRASERENHERE N ZE
FEFL IR A ER D AT -

30June 31 December
2021 2020
—BZ-F —EEF
AA=+tH +Z-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)
HKs’000 HKS000
FET FET
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERERE R BERARERZ
condensed consolidated statement of EEBIEEE TR
financial position 2,400 2,320
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised inthe R ESBA4R A BI AR R FERR
condensed consolidated statement of BEEBIEBEFRE
financial position (12,146) (12,563)
(9,746) (10,243)
22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 22. HAAREE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not RS HEEER TARYBRE
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: NIELBEEBE 2 SABERT :

Guarantees have been given to certain banks by the Company for
performance bonds/guarantees issued by the banks in relation
to certain contracts undertaken by the Group amounting to
HK$31,700,000 (31 December 2020: HK$31,700,000), of which
HK$20,939,000 (31 December 2020: HK$20,926,000) were utilised as
at 30 June 2021.

AAREHAEBEAEZETALM
MEHBITRHZBHRE ERRM
= TR 1T 3R 14 A £031,700,00058 7T (—
T -FF+ = F=+—H : 31,700,000
W IT) Z PR - E 20,939,000 7T (=
T -oFF+ = F=+—H 20,926,000
BIT)ER -_E-—FXA=1tHEHHA -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23. BEAERS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances RIS BRREMESFM S
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the THREHRIN REBRBAGET
following transactions with related parties during the period: THEEALRS :
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEEFZERBAEZMEMT -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLAEA

2021 2020

—EBE-—F —E_EF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEZR) (RegEZ)

HKs$’000 HKS000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits R E BRI 8,464 7,876

Equity-settled share-based payment expense %1 &% & A I {9 S (5 2 272 478

Post-employment benefits BERL 2 12 A 81 81
Total compensation paid to key TRNEBEEBAEZ

management personnel e B E 8,817 8,435

These included continuing connected transactions exempt from the I EFEX I BIEEREETER

connected transaction requirements under Rule 14A.95 of the Main LR AIE 14A95 (GHEERZ HHE o

Board Listing Rules.
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B ERRME(E)

24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 24, R TEAERATFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade receivables, current
portion of deposits and other receivables, trade payables, current
portion of other payables and financial liabilities included in accruals
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term
maturities of these instruments or the effect of discounting is not
material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values for certain financial instruments:

The fair values of the non-current deposits and other payables have
been calculated by discounting the expected cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms. In the opinion
of the directors, the fair values of these financial instruments
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of a club membership debenture included in debt
investment is based on available market prices.

The fair value of the Call Options is determined using the Binomial
Model, which involves the construction of a binomial lattice which
represents different possible paths that might be followed by the
stock price over the life of the Call Options.

£

RBEHHEEER  AEEVBEE
kafEzREERE A HESEMMEE -

ERECHERSRERRTEE -
EEMRITER  BREZEFX R

MoZBREREMEYWHIE  EBHE
SRR RB AR D 2 B A FE AT IR I
AFARFRBEZKEBEzAFER
HEmMERS TEHRZFIAZ
FHARERTRNFELTEKX -

MBEERABZAFEDREER
PAZERNEAMRSGZARSTAS
BARR sl sUR &L & RIS ERR
THFERBRE ARG E THH
TARFE:

FRBREMNEBEMNTBENRFE
TERBREMESNELGIROTA
HEMRE e REMAMNIE EFERA
ZEVHTANRFHEREREEMES °

EABRAREBREZ A FESRT
BWEFL

AFANEBREZEMEREF AT
BNETSERSE -

REMEZ 2 ER - XEREETE -
Hp @y — XEEE KRERE
HIREFHAREB IR AIEES -
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24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

24, IR TEAFERAFEEZER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy

of the Group’s financial instruments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2021

&iE (|)

NP ESHER

TREBTRASEMBITAZ R VER

BEMRE

BEAVEAEBZEE:

R-FE-—FXNA=+H

Fair value measurement using

AFERAUATREAGTE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BB EATEE EATTEE

mIEHRE WARE BAHE
(%118) (%28) ($38) B
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REER) (RRER)  (RBER) (REER)
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKs'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial assets at fair value through ~ R AFEZLBHEARZ
profit or loss: PHEE -

Listed equity investments TAREEE 8,063 - - 8,063
Debt investment BREE - 2,100 - 2,100
Call Options REDE - - 61 61
8,063 2,100 61 10,224

—m - E R | B EREEERAT 55




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

24. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

24.

MBEIEAFERAFESER
ZE (&)

ATFESHEE (FE)
BRAFEFEZEE  (#)
RZEFE-ZFF+-—H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AFERANTERIE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BB EATEE EXTAUHE
minRE BARE BAHE
(B1E) (%28) (%3[) Fk
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(&%) (%= %) (EE%) (8ER)
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Financial assets at fair value through ~ R AFEZLBHEARZ
profit or loss: PHEE -
Listed equity investments TAREEE 7322 - - 7322
Debt investment ERHE - 2,100 - 2,100
Call Options REHE - - 61 61
7322 2,100 61 9,483
Liabilities measured at fair value: BEATEFEZAE:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020.

During the period ended 30 June 2021, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2020: Nil).

AEER-_Z-_—FRA=+BRZ
ZTF+ A=+ —HUEEEMIR
NP EFEZHBRIE -

HE_ZT-_—FXA=+81LHH"
MM BEERMBAENS @ £1/EH
F2EEMEQATAEFEER  IHE
AFEFEEANELEIE (B2
E-TF+ A=+ —HIFE E) -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments include lease liabilities,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and other payables, financial liabilities included in accruals
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which mainly
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and bank deposits
with floating interest rates.

T —FRURE | R RGERERAE 5/

PSRRI (E)

25. I EREEEERBEK

AEEZIZMKETABREHEERE
EEMRTEFIARRELEFRRE
EE-UWEWBIAZFEREDAR
AEBZEBBME AEEAEMS
BEWHEERARE  NMEKE SRR
Be RkEMEBKKE  ENESEX
K E b & FRIR - 5F A A IR 2
BRBEREATFELSBERSARZTG
BE HEVHEENABEIEZAR
BEEEREL -

AEERBEIARELEZ TEZRBRAR
TRk NERR - EERR - BAE
RERERBDECER EFSEH
I [ &N SRRt 3R % TR Ut 5 L R
ZHR e

M@
AEBREMSHNEZEGHMAT 2R

BT RENEEFHRNBITRERZH
MEFBZIRE MRITHERBEM -



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 25 IXEREEBERBE (E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Interest rate risk (continued) F =@k (8)
TEREBINEFRBEMEHEZ T
BRT  AEEZBRBRIDEF (BBY
R RIBTEBRMIBITERAZLTE)
HHREREIBA[REHIRE &) 2 HRIRE -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate bank balances and bank deposits).

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
HEiEhn, BRBE A& T
ORA) i, GBd)
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)
HKs’000
FET

As at 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—FxXA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (156)
United States dollar EVIv (25) (463)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(TARED (25) (136)
Hong Kong dollar me 25 156
United States dollar EIv 25 463
RMB AR 25 136
As at 30 June 2020 RNZEZZEFA=1+H
Hong Kong dollar ETT (25) (92)
United States dollar EIv (25) (395)
RMB AR (25) (116)
Hong Kong dollar me 25 92
United States dollar ETT 25 395
RMB AR 25 116

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

BROR B AISN  HA KRB m B BT

& -
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

7

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’

functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

PSRRI (E)

25. B RAREEBEREEX (&)

S mLBR

AEEEHXZEERER - WERE

ERENEEFENERZEMLYES
BIANEERBRZRARREEZ
AR KBS

TRBIEFAR R B ASTE Y
BERT  AEEBRBRESHELEEH 2
RN (AEBEERABEATE
AR HARBEETEAREH 2 &

and liabilities). RRIEE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ERLEH RR Bt A0 28
(Tr) i CGRD)
(Unaudited)
(REER)
% HKs’000
FET
As at 30 June 2021 R-ZE-—FxXA=1+H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB T A AREEZE 5 (541)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB ~ fifi78 7T i A R EEFHE (5) 541
As at 30 June 2020 R-ZZB_TFRA=TH
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT HARKEEE 5 (523)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 78 7T i, A R EEFHE (5) 523
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained PR R B8 0 K A - B A S B s L AT
profits. A& o
Credit risk EE R
The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised REBXFEZHRAREERTIZE=

and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group’s management on

an ongoing basis.

— R | R RREEARAT 50
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and period/year-end
staging classification as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

25. B EBRERE B FERBEEK (&)

FERR (&)
REELRRRRFERITERER

TRERERAEBEERENEE
EEZRESEEAR  TEUAHEH
BEE(BIETENRBBSHARS
NMER TREEMER)  RR-F
——#XA=StAR-E-BF+=
B=+— B8, kAR -
FESMeEANBAENREAME -

As at 30 June 2021 R-BZ—FAF=1H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f8A
RHEEER 2HRBEERSR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-RR E-RE EZRA L A% BE
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (RBER) (RBER) (REER) (REER)
HKS$’000 HKs'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* e E 5 R F - - - 54,846 54,846
Contract assets* AREE: - - - 21,100 21,100
Deposits and other receivables 24 & K ft JE Ut 5008
- Normal** —IEE* 4,783 - - - 4,783
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER
- Not yet past due — MR8 924 - - - 924
Cashand cashequivalents ~ H4& FERBLEE
- Not yet past due — W A8 283,241 - - - 283,241
288,948 - - 75,946 364,894
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

PSRRI (E)

25. I EREREBFERBEEK (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and period/year-end staging (continued)

FERRE (&)

REEBERRAFRIEREER ()

As at 31 December 2020 R-ZFZFF+-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
BHEEEAR 2HESEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE& F_RE& o BlH* Fats)
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(8ER) (&R (BER) (&ER) (&ER)
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FHET FHET TET FET FET
Trade receivables* B E 5 R 3 - - - 48,359 48,359
Contract assets* BHEE" - - - 20,248 20,248
Deposits and other receivables 124 [ E i f& U 2008
- Normal** —EE* 4332 - - - 4332
Pledged bank deposits EERRRITER
- Not yet past due —HRBH 666 - - - 666
Cashand cashequivalents ~ H& NERBLEE
- Not yet past due — W A8 295,632 - - - 295,632
300,630 - - 68,607 369,237

* For trade receivables and contract assets to which the Group applies

*%

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements, respectively.

The credit quality of the deposits and other receivables is considered
to be “normal”when they are not past due and there is no information
indlicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the

* PR EEEF LT AR E R E A E
WEZGEAREVEE  ERBEHE
B E R 5 ERYEHZN T 16
f17 e

i AL S TR K 2 R R 0
EHRTHBEEEAN L EREEER
B A G E 0 AR ER 2 KA fE
WK B EEEERIIER] - HA

financial assets is considered to be “doubtful””
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity investments
(note 18) as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020. The Group’s
listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong and are valued at quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

25. B EBRERE B FERBEEK (&)

PR A fE 4% B

k$FWHMEhmF%$E@ﬁ@
MEBFBEZECERRAER 2R
FEREZ B - AEEZ BAERE
BRRRNE_T-_—FR"A=TER=
7_7¢+ A=+—BHERAF
BB ARIMBEE-LHBRA
K& (MaE18) 2 AR AR E - NE
Bz EMRAIRERNE BB LT
R EHEEERRTISRENE -

TRESERALERB @S TR
ERTRAGERMBRETERN  AH

REEALE ALE FTRARE
NS EAE B2 AT ESRE10%

B HHEAEE 2 BRARE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

BRAEREZ RR B A R

BREE M ORD)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REEX) (REBEX)

HKS’000 HK$’000

FETT FET
As at 30 June 2021 R=ZB-Z—FXA=t+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EREBEMZ2RARE

- financial assets at fair value through —“RBRATELEEAERZ
profit or loss WBEE 8,063 806
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 25 IREREEBERBE (E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Equity price risk (continued) % A (B 4% L B (4E)
Carrying Increase/
amount (decrease)
of equity in profit
investments before tax

BAREZ B 35 A A
fRmEE  Em OB

(Audited) (Audited)
(E&EZ) (f& &%)
HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FHF+-A=+—H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEBLEMZRARE -
- financial assets at fair value through — AV ELESE AR,
profit or loss WMBEE 7,322 732
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained BRIRBRHFIN B AREFER B ES
profits. B4
Liquidity risk REBESER
The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to REBZEZAEBREZEZEHNE S
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short ENEESHAERBZVBAES L
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group RN EEREECHERRE  NEBHER
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and L#gFZEEERATHRERAERE
bank deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the EE RS RIRITESGKT RIBTT
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash FR U RERNRESRE NI ERZ
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior HE aREREERETRYERAE
management on an ongoing basis. BEoBEeRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

25. B EBRERE B FERBEEK (&)

RBESRR ()

RBEHELEER AEERESY
AWBNFAFEZHEEERHE
WAAR

As at 30 June 2021 R-ZZB=-Z—FXA=+H
Lessthan ~ 3tolessthan 1to5
On demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=z

REXEE  HPR=fEA TZEAR -ZEf ag

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (RBER) (REEH) (REEK) (REBER)

HK$'000 HK$000 HKs000 HK$’000 HKs000

FiEx iz FEx FiEx Tz

Trade payables B E SRR 11,378 1,780 846 - 14,004

Other payables Hio B HE - 26,136 - 498 26,634

Lease liabiliies HERE - 1,061 2,363 1,702 5,126

Financial liabilities included in accruals T A\ BT E 2 H 5 & (& - 7152 - - 7,152
Guarantees given to banks for RAKEEZEZET
performance bonds/quarantees AUOBHENRE
issued in relation to certain ERMAEITRE

contracts undertaken by the Group 2 & 1R 20,939 - - - 20,939

32,317 36,129 3,209 2,200 73,855
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PSRRI (E)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 25 IREREEBERBE (E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE LR (F)
As at 31 December 2020 N-_E-_EF+_A=+—H
Less than 3to less than Tt05
On demand 3months 12 months years Total
=3
RERER  PR=MEA TZ{EAR —Z0% B
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited) (Audited)
(B=17) (8%E%) (B517) (B=17) (BE%)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
TET FET TET TET TET
Trade payables BT E SRR 16,574 809 71 - 18,094
Other payables HibEMFIE - 26,172 - 537 26,709
Lease liabilities HEAR - 1,107 4527 3022 8,656
Financial liabilities included in accruals 5t AJEEHHE 7 5 & & - 6,468 - - 6,468
Guarantees given to banks for RAKEAZZET
performance bonds/guarantees BHELBRARE
issued in relation to certain FERM R BITRE
contracts undertaken by the Group 2 #E /% 20,926 - - - 20,926
37,500 34556 5238 3559 80853
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

B ERRME(E)

25.

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2021 and year ended 31 December 2020.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 16 August 2021.

25. B EBRERE B FERBEEK (&)

26.

EXEH

AEBEAERZTEZEBNERRE
AEBRBERLEZRENLHFRESE
REE AXFHEEBRBBERE K
mAEE -

AREBBECEMR D 2B KARE
EzEBEE THEELEERER
HEERIELAZ - AEBATABASA
BEBRRREZRE MREEESE
R EEITHR - VRIS ST E AN -
NEBBABTEMINTIEINZ E AR
ME-BHEZ-_TE-_—F<~A=1+H1t
HEEEE - _EF+ A =+—
HIEFERN AEBZEAEREBEEZ -
BRI o

RERE 2 BN A R B B 0 4K ©

o H B B R R

EEeN _T-_—FNA+BH#E
KI5 i )23 R HREA TS 3R % o
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DIRECTORS'INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2021, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for

Other Information

Hgx

EERROREBERO 2EEZR LR

RZZEZ—FA=+H  FZ2FREA

MEEB LR (ExRFE %&%fh%ﬁ
FHNEFEED]]) EXVER) 2 A K& B R R (D
PR AR RIAREES M E GG 352
BHREFBEZELMP LSRR E LN
BITAEETHETEFIINIZE

|

SRS AT

Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

PIE-RAN/NETPYE

ERREBRZHR

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FEROBE - SoRERNE

ERH PRI

HPDX

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued

Note owned corporation Total share capital

EARRDT

B ZB EB®ITRA

Name of director BEEnR Bt iF BEREEE SEHEAH wmy ERal
Ng Cheung Shing REB (@) 4,684,000 114,614,000 119,298,000 47.82
Cheung Wai Lam SRAIE TR 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.40
Leung King San, Sunny £ 1,030,000 - 1,030,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R E 58 520,000 - 520,000 0.21
7,234,000 114,614,000 121,848,000 48.84
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (42)

DIRECTORS'INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

%ﬁ%&ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁi*&ﬁ&iﬁ%
IIE

R—BHEBEERD 2H A :

Percentage
Number of shares of the
KiB#E associated
Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s
associated with the Class of beneficially controlled  issued share
Name of director corporation Company shares owned corporation capital
EREL
E# EB EBTRA
EEpng HBEEER BEANE 2 HR IR 1 % Bl Biffs XEHLT B
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And ~ Company’s subsidiary Non-voting 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
RRE Technologies ~ AR ZHIBAF deferred (note P[7E (b)) TEFE
International EREREL
Limited

Mg RGARAA

Notes:

(@) The 114,614,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

P&E -

(@) CS.(BVI) Limited 2 2 EKIBRRIGBHEHE
FRAaE] ([BE )8 114,614,000 it (5 - =
EBEABRENCS. (BVI) Limited 7 REAE
FITESETE =0 2 — A 2R
if1 C.S. (BVI) Limited R B A EH IR R KE L
TEEHITE=ZD 2 — A LI -
It BIBEEAFRBEKRN  RRBILAEES
BRNEHMEE ARG HEER -

(b) % 3,250,000 & fEI% EREIRIEAX(D R IBHHITAE ©

B EXHEEN R —FEXA=+
B BEEEN ARG TR LIE
D SRR D - B A RIEES RBEK
BIEE 3525 7B Frosk ARG E BT AE
BRTEFIGHNEZEETIZTASAR
B R FT R SAR o
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017 (the “Renewed Date”). Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of
the Company (the “Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees
(including directors) of the Group until the 10" anniversary from the
Renewed Date. The Company shall also pay cash to the appointed trustee
company for its acquisition and holding upon trust of the Awarded
Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors. The Awarded
Shares will then be transferred to these employees and directors upon
vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded under the Award
Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time or such other percentage as
notified to them by the Board (provided that the overall limit on the
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under any other incentive or
share option schemes and under the Award Scheme must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time).

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2020.
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (42)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BRI R 5 RS (&)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the FXRHIHEE T - —FXA=+HI-
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30 M NZEET & E N EBRH 2 HE R E
June 2021. BE) o

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

AERRBROHE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 30 June Vesting period of ~ fair value
of participant 2021 theperiod theperiod the period 2021 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
i S
SEENE —B--F R MR B —B--F SR E
il Eobel —-A—H 524 EEE Bk% ~A=t+A Rt E A8 RBROBES FULTE
HKS
BT
Directors
)
Ng Cheung Shing 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
REB “EN\F 30 April 2023
AATHA —ZT-AFNA=+HZ
ZEC=FMA=TH
Cheung Wai Lam 50,000 - - - 50,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
RER —E-RE 30 September 2021
TATME —Z—+FAA=TEZE
—EZ-FNAA=TH
Cheung Wai Lam 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RER “T-N\F 30 April 2023
TAtEA —Z-NFEA=+HE
“EZ=FMA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung 150,000 - (50,000) - 100,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
RE® —E-N\F 30 April 2023
AA+TMAE ZE-hEMA=+RHZE
ZZTZ=FMA=1A
Sub-total
et 500,000 - (150,000) - 350,000
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R ()

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BIRFIIR 0 R B8 (F)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AERRBROHE
Weighted
At Awarded Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during during during 30 June Vesting period of ~ fair value
of participant 2021 theperiod theperiod the period 2021 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
i R®
SERENE —B--F R R B —B--F BRME
REER —-A—-H 2®B EEE 2Rk ~A=tH RLREA S RRRAEES FHAFE
HKS
BT
Other employees
HitES
In aggregate 24,000 - - - 24,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 to 243
At —E-RE 30 September 2021
TATEA Z2—+FAAR=+HE
ZEZ-FNA=TH
In aggregate 795,000 - (265,000) - 530,000 14 May 2018 30 April 2019 to 243
G —Z-N\HF 30 April 2023
RATME —Z-AFNA=TEZE
ZEZ=FMA=TH
In aggregate 336,000 - (84,000) - 252,000 4 July 2019 30 June 2020 to 3.1
ait —T-NE 30 June 2024
tAMA ZTZTFRA=1HZE
“RIMERA=TH
Sub-total
INat 1,155,000 - (349,000) - 806,000
Total
Mt 1,655,000 - (499,000) - 1,156,000
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (42)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2021, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

FERRREMAL (AFAQTE
EREFBRTHRAR) RROEKEBER
10z &

RZEZ—FRXA=1+H UTRERF
ARCERIN B ARIERRE 75 I BB R 0] 56 336 15 AR
EREZRAECMAEARARFTEEHITR

section 336 of the SFO:

7% T B PR 59% LA | 2 435 -

Long positions: #E:
Percentage
of the
Number of Company’s Number
Capacity and nature ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  of interest shares held capital options held
RN
BRITRA i
ARNRRRMEAE AR it BaRERME FiEEBEREE BOK BB
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@  Directly beneficially owned 114,614,000 45.94 -
BUMBRARAR BEREREAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@)  Through a controlled corporation 114,614,000 4594 -
BRREHRE
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.68 -
BEREREAR
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
BRREH AT
Hutchison Whampoa Limited (“HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
MEEEERAE ((HE]) BRREH AT
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RIE% (RE)ERRA(RE] BRREH AT
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.68 -
RINZEXRBRAR ([RAM)) BRXEH AT
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1073 -
FNX BEREREAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 5,564,665 2.23 -
EREREAR
() Through a controlled corporation 9,397,335 3.77 -

EBEHAA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
(NOT BEING A DIRECTOR OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE
COMPANY) INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions: (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 9,397,335 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2021, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the period, the trustee of the Company’s restricted share award
scheme had, pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of such
scheme, purchased from the market a total of 174,000 shares of the
Company being the awarded restricted shares. The total amount paid to
acquire these shares during the period was approximately HK$471,000.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period.
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Other Information (continued)

Hitp &R (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board
believes that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and to the enhancement of shareholders’value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period except on the deviations noted below.

The CG code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer (“CEO”) should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. As disclosed in the announcement
dated 30 December 2019, Mr. Cheung Wai Lam has been re-designated
from an executive director of the Company and the CEO to an executive
director effective 1 January 2020.

Mr. Poon Ka Chi, William has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the
Group with effect from 1 August 2018. Deputy CEO mainly focuses on
certain business operations and administrative functions of the Group,
assists the Board to formulate strategies for the Group and to make sure
they are implemented successfully. With the present board structure
and scope of business, the Board considers that there is no imminent
need to appoint a CEO. However, the Board will continue to review the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure and will
consider whether any changes, including the appointment of a CEO, are
necessary.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.
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RATBBARYEER 2 EE RN ERF =K
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TruiTEE B-ZT-_TF— A —HiE4L
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on a specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the six months ended 30 June 2021.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Group has established an effective risk governance and management
framework in line with the requirements set out by the Listing Rules
and other regulations. This framework was built around a structure
that enables the Board and the management to discharge their risk
management-related responsibilities with appropriate delegation as
well as checks and balances. These responsibilities included defining
risk appetite in accordance with the Group’s business strategies and
objectives, formulating risk policies that govern the execution of those
strategies, and establishing procedures and limits for the approval,
control, monitoring and remedy of risks.

The members of the Risk Management Committee positioned at the
highest level of the Group’s risk governance structure under the Board.
Members included three executive directors and one independent
non-executive director. The Risk Management Committee had direct
involvements in formulating the Group’s risk appetite, and determined
the levels of risk that the Group is willing to undertake with reference to
its financial capacity, strategic direction, prevailing market conditions and
regulatory requirements.

The Risk Management Committee will continuously ensure the Group’s
risk appetite is realistically reflected in the policies and procedures
that the management adopted in executing its business functions.
The Risk Management Committee will regularly review the Group’s risk
management framework and ensure that all important risk-related tasks
are performed according to established policies and with appropriate
resources.
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Other Information (continued)

Hib &R (42)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an Audit Committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process, risk management and internal controls. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the Company.
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 have not been audited, but the Audit
Committee has discussed with the management of the Company and the
external auditors, Ernst & Young, on the appropriateness and consistency
of the accounting policies that have been adopted by the Company. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the interim results and the interim report
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021.

EREEE
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